GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
MEETING TO BE HELD AT 11.00 AM ON THURSDAY, 22 JULY 2021
REMOTELY AND LIVESTREAMED HERE:
HTTPS://WWW.YOUTUBE.COM/CHANNEL/UCAZJNSGPQZZT41VIBN2
ZK9A/LIVE (COPY AND PASTE THE LINK IN YOUR BROWSER)

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS

3.

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE EXCLUSION OF THE
PRESS AND PUBLIC

4.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOVERNANCE AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE HELD ON 13 MARCH
(Pages 1 - 4)

5.

GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS AND FORWARD PLAN
(Pages 5 - 12)

6.

REVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROL AND EFFECTIVENESS OF
INTERNAL AUDIT
(Pages 13 - 26)

7.

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT AND OPINION 2020/21
(Pages 27 - 44)

8.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
(Pages 45 - 54)

9.

EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
(Pages 55 - 78)

10.

COMPLIANCE AND MONITORING
(Pages 79 - 86)

11.

ANNUAL ACCOUNTABILITY REPORTING
(Pages 87 - 92)

Signed:

Managing Director
West Yorkshire Combined Authority

Agenda Item 4

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT
COMMITTEEHELD ON THURSDAY, 18 MARCH 2021

Present:
Joanna Wardman
Councillor Shabir Pandor
Councillor Jane Scullion (Substitute)
Councillor Steven Leigh MBE

Independent Member
Kirklees Council
Calderdale Council
Calderdale Council

In attendance:
Angela Taylor
Bronwyn Baker
Jonathan Sheard
Ben Kearns
31.

West Yorkshire Combined Authority
West Yorkshire Combined Authority
West Yorkshire Combined Authority
West Yorkshire Combined Authority

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Hinchcliffe and
Councillor Swift.

32.

Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
There were no declarations of pecuniary interests at the meeting.

33.

Exclusion of the Press and Public
There were no items that required the exclusion of the press and public.

34.

Minutes of the Meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee held on
14 January
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 January be approved.

35.

Internal Audit Progress Report
The Committee considered a report that provided an update on progress
against delivery on the internal audit plan 2020/21 and set out the audit plan
for the year 2021/22.
The Committee noted the top three risks as identified by internal audit:
readiness for the elections in May, Covid recovery, and the transfer of Police

1

and Crime Commissioner functions.
Members asked for a review of the base assumptions underpinning the
climate emergency policies and further assurance form internal audit would be
helpful to ensure that the Combined Authority is able to meet its targets.
Members also asked for assurance around the impact of social distancing
measures at polling stations at the upcoming elections; particularly around
when the polling stations close to avoid anyone from being disenfranchised.
Officers would take this concern back to the electoral teams who were
currently carrying out a risk assessment.
Resolved:
(i) That the internal audit progress to date be noted.
(ii) That the internal audit plan for 2021/22 be approved.
36.

External Audit Progress Report
Members considered a report that provided an update on external audit
matters.
Members questioned the materiality assigned and whether it should be lower.
It was noted that the 2% of gross expenditure was a standard sectoral
approach to audits of this type. Several audit items would be tested below the
2% materiality level and any errors found through this testing would be
reported to the Committee.
The possible changes to the audit fees were noted and the likelihood that
these fees to increase and would be reported to the next meeting of the
Committee. This was in line with a national approach as Government has
recognised the increase pressures on auditors.
Members noted the new code of audit practice for 2020/21. The main changes
included a move away from a binary audit conclusion and replaced by an
annual narrative commentary in relation to value for money arrangements. The
code meant that any concerns would be raised as and when they were
identified.
Resolved: That the report be noted.

37.

Compliance and Monitoring
The Committee considered a report which set out any changes to
arrangements for internal controls since the last meeting as well as the
financial positions for 2020/21 and 2021/22.
There had been no significant changes or breaches in the arrangements for
internal controls and no RIDDOR incidents in the period.
The treasury management strategy had been approved at the February

2

Combined Authority meeting and any concerns would be reported to the
Governance and Audit Committee.
A balanced budget for the current year had been approved and work was
underway to achieve that for the forthcoming year.
Resolved: That the report be noted.
38.

Mayoral Combined Authority Preparations - Governance
The Committee considered a report that provided an update on the progress
of the decision making and committee arrangement workstream of the Mayoral
Combined Authority Ready Programme Board.
A formal constitution was in development to codify the governance
arrangements for the Mayoral Combined Authority.
Members wished to thank officers for their work on the governance aspect of
the Mayoral Combined Authority work.
Resolved: That the report be noted.

39.

PCC Governance Arrangements
The Committee considered a report which outlined future arrangement s for
governance with regard to the Police and Crime Commissioner functions.
The Joint Independent Audit and Ethics Committee would continue to oversee
the effective operation of the police and crime commissioner functions. IT
would be important to ensure that the reporting arrangements between the
Joint Independent Audit and Ethics Committee and the Governance and Audit
Committee were clear.
Work was underway to put in place a Service Level Agreement with WYP for
the internal audit work that may be required to be undertaken in relation to the
Mayor’s PCC functions.
Resolved: That the report be noted.

40.

Ethical Standards for MCA
The Committee considered a report which set out the draft Members’ Code of
Conduct.
Resolved: That the Code of Conduct be recommended to the Combined
Authority to approval.

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

Report to:

Governance and Audit Committee

Date:

22 July 2021

Subject:

Governance arrangements and forward plan

Director:

Angela Taylor, Director, Corporate and Commercial Services

Author(s):

Caroline Allen, Head of Legal and Governance Services

1.

Purpose of this report

1.1

To note the updated position of the Combined Authority’s governance
generally.

1.2

To note the governance arrangements for the Governance and Audit
Committee.

1.3

To note the proposed work programme for the year.

2.

Information
Combined Authority governance update

2.1

The Combined Authority at its meeting on 9 March 2021 agreed to adopt a
Constitution, in readiness for its new functions as a Mayoral Combined
Authority, including the transfer of PCC Functions. Further documents within
the Constitution were approved by the Combined Authority at its meeting on
22 April 2021 to come into effect on 10 May, after the election of the Mayor.
The Combined Authority also approved a restructure of its Committee
arrangements.

2.2

At the annual meeting, the Combined Authority approved the Constitution as a
whole, following amendments proposed for clarity and updating, this included
the amended terms of reference for each of the Committees.

2.3

The annual meeting also noted the proposed appointment of Alison Lowe as
the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime. The Mayor’s recommendation
was reviewed by the Police and Crime Panel on 18th June and subsequently
confirmed.

5

2.4

In terms of the transfer of PCC Functions, the annual meeting noted the
Mayor’s arrangements for PCC Functions as set out in the new and revised
scheme of governance documentation. This documentation consists of a
Scheme of Consent for the Chief Constable and the Mayor’s PCC Scheme
of Delegation. Additionally, the terms of reference of the existing Joint
Independent Audit and Ethics Committee have been reviewed to ensure it is
enabled and effective in providing independent review of the governance
arrangements of the West Yorkshire Police and of the Mayor’s PCC
Functions.

2.5

The scale and complexity of the Combined Authority’s governance
arrangements has increased as a Mayoral Combined Authority and will
continue to do so as the new governance arrangements bed in, are monitored,
and where necessary revisions are made going forward to ensure that the
constitutional arrangements continue to be fit for purpose and operationally
effective.
Governance and Audit Committee

2.6

At the annual meeting. the Combined Authority resolved to appoint the
Governance and Audit Committee on the terms of reference attached as
Appendix 1 to this report. The following changes have been made:
 footnote 5, which clarifies the Governance and Audit Committee’s role
in relation to the Leeds City Region Enterprise Partnership (the LEP),
 to state the Committee is authorised to receive and consider an annual
report from the Joint Independent Audit and Ethics Committee,
 confirmation throughout that the remit of the Committee extends to
PCC functions, and
 to confirm that the Committee is authorised to consider complaints
referred by the Police and Crime Panel.

2.7

Membership arrangements remain as for last municipal year, save for a
change in the second Independent Member. The Head of Legal and
Governance Services arranged for an interview panel to be convened and
recommendations were made to the Combined Authority. At the annual
meeting, the Combined Authority appointed Debbie Simpson as the second
Independent Member.

2.8

No changes have been made to the quorum of the Committee, which remains
3, and voting arrangements are also unchanged.

2.9

The Combined Authority also appointed Councillor Susan Hinchcliffe as Chair
of the Committee and Councillor Tim Swift as deputy.

2.11

The Combined Authority also agreed meetings dates for the Committee, as
follows:




22 July 2021
30 September 2021
13 January 2022

6



10 March 2022

2.12

A proposed forward plan of work is attached as Appendix 2, reflecting the key
responsibilities of the Committee and noting that agenda items can be added
during the year as required.

3.

Tackling the Climate Emergency Implications

3.1

There are no climate emergency implications directly arising from this report.

4.

Inclusive Growth Implications

4.1

There are no inclusive growth implications directly arising from this report.

5.

Financial Implications

5.1

There are no financial implications directly arising from this report.

6.

Legal Implications

6.1

There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.

7.

Staffing Implications

7.1

There are no staffing implications directly arising from this report.

8.

External Consultees

8.1

No external consultations have been undertaken.

9.

Recommendations

9.1

That the Governance and Audit Committee notes the governance
arrangements approved by the Combined Authority at the Annual Meeting on
24 June 2021.

9.2

That the Governance and Audit Committee considers the proposed work
programme at Appendix 2.

10.

Background Documents
None.

11.

Appendices
Appendix 1 – Terms of Reference for the Governance and Audit Committee
Appendix 2 – Draft work programme

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

Part 3
Section 2.3 - Terms of Reference
Governance and Audit Committee1
The Governance and Audit Committee is authorised2:
1.

To review and scrutinise the Combined Authority’s financial affairs3.

2.

To review and assess the Combined Authority’s risk management, internal
control and corporate governance arrangements4.

3.

To review and assess the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which
resources have been used in discharging the Combined Authority’s functions.

4.

To make reports and recommendations to the Combined Authority5 in relation to
reviews conducted under paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 above6.

5.

To consider the findings of a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control and approve the annual governance statement7.

6.

To consider and approve the statement of accounts8.

7.

To consider external audit arrangements9 and reports, and consider any audit
letter from the local auditor following an audit.

1

Appointed in accordance with paragraph 4 of Schedule 5A of the Local Democracy, Economic
Development and Construction Act 2009
2

These terms of reference should be construed in a broad and inclusive fashion to include any action
which facilitates or is conducive or incidental to the role of the Combined Authority as accountable
body for the Leeds City Region Enterprise Partnership (the LEP)
3

including in relation to PCC Functions

4

including in relation to PCC Functions

The LEP’s Procedure Rules provide that the LEP Board shall consider any audit reports or
recommendations relating to LEP activities
5

6

including in relation to PCC Functions

7

Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015

8

including in relation to PCC Functions and incorporating the accounts of the Chief Constable in
accordance with Article 41 of The West Yorkshire Combined Authority (Election of Mayor and
Functions) Order 2021
9

This does not include appointing a local auditor, which must be carried out by the Combined
Authority.

9

8.

To receive and consider an annual report form the Joint Independent Audit and
Ethics Committee10.

9.

To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by members and co-opted
members of the Combined Authority.11

10. To advise the Combined Authority in relation to:


adopting, revising or replacing its Members’ Code of Conduct12;



appointing at least one independent person13; and



arrangements for investigating and making decisions about allegations of
failing to comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

11. To consider and determine any allegation of failing to comply with the Members’
Code of Conduct including complaints referred by the Police and Crime Panel 14.

Document version control
Municipal Year:

2021-22

Version:

1 - 21/22

Document approved by: The Combined Authority
Date:

24 June 2021

To be of effect from:

24 June 2021

10

Established in accordance with the Financial Management Code of Practice (Home Office
Guidance)
11

This function does not extend to adopting, revising or replacing the Members’ Code of Conduct

12

The Code applies to members and voting co-opted members of the Combined Authority and
includes provision about registering and disclosing interests
13

In accordance with Section 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011

14

In accordance with arrangements made by the Combined Authority and regulation 29 of The
Elected Local Policing Bodies (Complaints and Misconduct) Regulations 2012 as amended by 2021
Order

10

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2
Governance and Audit Committee draft work programme 2021/22

The following standing items will appear on each agenda:




External audit update
Internal audit progress
Compliance and monitoring (including budgets and risk)

The following items are scheduled for specific meetings:

30 Sep 2021

Annual accounts for WYCA for approval
13 month accounts for WY Police Group for approval

13 Jan 2022

Early consideration of internal audit plan for 2020/21
Annual audit letter, including vfm
Budget and treasury management 2022/23

10 Mar 2022

External audit fee letter
External audit planning
Approval of internal audit plan 2020/21

July 2022

Approval of annual accounts
Internal audit annual report
Review of internal control
Report from policing Joint Independent Audit and Ethics
Committee

Other items will be brought to the Committee as and when they occur, for example
in connection with the appointment of external auditors and the consultation on
their fees. Any issues arising in connection with the Members’ Code of Conduct
would also be referred to this Committee.

11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
.30

Report to:

Governance and Audit Committee

Date:

22 July 2021

Subject:

Review of internal control and effectiveness of internal audit

Director(s):

Angela Taylor, Director, Corporate and Commercial Services

Author(s):

Angela Taylor

1.

Purpose of this report

1.1

To inform the Committee of the outcome of a review of internal control and the
effectiveness of internal audit.

2.

Information

2.1

There is a requirement under the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations
2015 that ‘The relevant body must conduct a review at least once in a year of
the effectiveness of its system of internal control…..The findings…must be
considered….by the members of the body meeting as a whole.’ There is a
further requirement that ‘A larger relevant body must, at least once in each
year, conduct a review of the effectiveness of its internal audit. The findings of
the review…must be considered, as part of the consideration of the system of
internal control … by the committee or body…’ As a Combined Authority the
appropriate body to consider these reviews is the Governance and Audit
Committee.

2.2

The elements of the system of internal control are set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Framework, approved by the Combined Authority at its
last annual meeting. The Corporate Governance Code and Framework uses
the seven principles as recommended by the Framework. The code is further
reviewed, updated and approved at the annual meeting of the Combined
Authority. It was also agreed at the annual meeting that it now required review
following the recent changes in governance arising from the change to
becoming a mayoral combined authority.

2.3

The review of the system of internal control is in effect set out in the Annual
Governance Statement (AGS) which is required to be included in the annual
accounts. This sets out the governance framework in place during the year
and is in accordance with the guidance set out by CIPFA/SOLACE. It is also

13

informed by the work undertaken by internal audit in the year and their overall
conclusion in their Internal Audit Annual Report which is:
From the work undertaken during the financial year 2020/21 and taking into
account other sources of assurance, Internal Audit have reached the opinion
that, overall, the effectiveness of the Combined Authority’s framework of
control, governance and risk management is adequate.
The full report from the Internal Audit Manager is included under agenda item
7. The AGS for the year to 31 March 2021 is included within the 2020/21
annual accounts which are currently undergoing audit and will be brought to
this Committee in September. The Combined Authority at its 24 June meeting
considered and endorsed the draft AGS, included here for information as
Appendix 1.
2.4

The Director, Corporate and Commercial Services has undertaken a review of
internal audit, considering her knowledge of the team and its work and the
information in the Internal Audit annual report which sets out the work
undertaken. Additionally the information available from the independent
external quality review undertaken two years ago is also still relevant, with a
requirement to undertake a further review in three years time. This assessed
the Internal Audit function in relation to compliance with Public Sector Internal
Auditing Standards. This concluded “that West Yorkshire Combined
Authority’s internal audit activity generally conforms with the definition of
Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards” which is the highest rating which can be given by this type of
review. A number of recommendations for further improvement were made by
the independent reviewer and these have been addressed by the Head of
Internal Audit.

2.5

The overall conclusion is therefore that the internal audit function complies
with the necessary standards and has worked to an adequate standard during
the year. There continue to be the same few instances of non-compliance
with the PSIAS but these are deemed immaterial (they include for instance the
non-involvement of the Chair of the Governance and Audit Committee in
staffing appraisals for the Internal Audit Manager). It is also recognised that all
services should strive for continuous improvement and the Head of Internal
Audit will continue to keep under review how she and her team can deliver
internal audit in the most effective and value added way.

3.

Tackling the Climate Emergency Implications

3.1

There are no climate emergency implications directly arising from this report.

4.

Inclusive Growth Implications

4.1

There are no inclusive growth implications directly arising from this report

14

5.

Financial Implications

5.1

There are no financial implications directly arising from this report.

6.

Legal Implications

6.1

There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.

7.

Staffing Implications

7.1

There are no staffing implications directly arising from this report.

8.

External Consultees

8.1

The external quality assessment has been considered as part of this item.

9.

Recommendations

9.1
That the Committee approve the outcome of the review of internal control and
of the effectiveness of internal audit.
10.

Background Documents
None.

11.

Appendices
Appendix 1 – Draft Annual Governance Statement.

15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1

West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Annual Governance Statement 2020/21
1. Scope of Responsibility
West Yorkshire Combined Authority is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.
The Combined Authority also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Combined Authority is also responsible for
putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective
exercise of its functions including arrangements for the management of risk. The Combined
Authority annually approves a Code of Corporate governance consistent with the principles
of CIPFA Solace framework "Delivering good governance in Local Government".
In accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 this Annual Governance
Statement (AGS) considers compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
Framework, and sets out how the Combined Authority 'ensures that the financial
management is adequate and effective and that the body has a sound system of internal
control which facilitates the effective exercise of that body's functions and which includes
arrangements for the management of risk.'
2. The purpose of the governance framework
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values,
by which the Combined Authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which
it accounts to and engages with the community. It enables the Combined Authority to
monitor the achievement of strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives
have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services for its customers.
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies,
aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Combined Authority’s policies, aims
and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and their impact
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The governance framework has been in place at the Combined Authority throughout the
year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval of the financial statements.
3. The governance framework
There are a number of key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the
Combined Authority’s governance arrangements. These are set out in the approved
Corporate Governance Code and Framework and which is available on its website. The
Combined Authority took on accountable body status for funding awarded to the Leeds City
Region Enterprise Partnership (LEP) from 1 April 2015 and governance arrangements
11

17

reflect this responsibility and continue to develop to further enhance this. During 2017/18 a
review of these arrangements resulted in formalising the LEP advisory panels that provide
policy direction and guidance to the LEP Board and these arrangements remained in place
for 2020/21, with ultimately financial approvals provided by the Combined Authority.
Governance Structure

a) Corporate policies and objectives are set and communicated by the Combined
Authority. The Combined Authority has clearly defined its ambitions to work with its
partners across the region to effect economic growth in the Leeds City Region; these
ambitions are set out in the both the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and then in the
newly formed Strategic Economic Framework (SEF). Both the SEP and SEF presents
investment priorities across the four pillars of growing business, developing a skilled
workforce, clean energy and environmental resilience and delivering the
infrastructure for growth. The SEF has been endorsed by both the LEP and
Combined Authority Boards and will be kept under regular review to ensure it
continues to align with the region’s needs and recognises relationships with new and
emerging strategies.
b) The LEP panels (with their public and private sector representation) are integrated
into the Combined Authority’s decision making process as advisory committees, thus
providing a consistent, accountable and transparent framework across both the LEP
and the Combined Authority, so far as possible. The status of the advisory
committees brings the panels under the statutory provisions relating to local authority
meetings and the Combined Authority’s Members’ Code of Conduct.
c) A review of LEP governance and transparency was carried out during 2017/18 which
considered local arrangements and recommendations from the DCLG Review of
Local Enterprise Partnership Governance and Transparency. The review led to the
adoption of a LEP constitution and associated procedures that have been in place for
2020/21. All documents were reviewed by the LEP, further to the publication by
Government of the revised National Local Growth Assurance Framework guidance.
All governance documents comply with the guidance published by Government. The
12

18

outcome of the most recent Annual Conversation carried out by the Cities and Local
Growth Unit confirmed that the LEP meets the standards for governance (the
outcome for 2020/21 was either met or not met).
d) The statutory Local Transport Plan (LTP) in place for 2020/21 was adopted by the
Combined Authority in August 2017 and sets out a step change in the quality and
performance of the transport system within West Yorkshire and its connections with
the rest of the country. It sits within the policy framework of the Combined Authority,
with the development of a Leeds City Region Industrial Strategy at its heart, targeted
at placing the City Region on the front-foot with an ambitious policy platform that
improves competitiveness and drives inclusive growth outcomes.
e) A suite of supporting plans and strategies set out further detail on a range of priority
areas, including housing and regeneration, digital infrastructure, green infrastructure,
skills and trade and investment.
f) The Leeds City Region Assurance Framework is in line with national best practice
and is peer reviewed and has been updated on an annual basis building on existing
good practice and reflecting any changes in both government guidance and
improvements to the Combined Authority’s procedures. The Assurance Framework
was comprehensively reviewed during 2020/21, as part of the required preparations
for becoming a Mayoral Combined Authority and to comply with the revised National
Local Growth Assurance Framework Guidance. The changes were considered and
endorsed through internal governance arrangements and submitted and approved by
Central Government in February 2021. The Assurance Framework supports decision
making on projects and guides investment decisions across the full portfolio of capital
interventions. It sets out the appropriate safeguards and processes to be put in place
to ensure the proper use of public funds and that value for money is secured and
outcomes are clearly agreed when investing in schemes. This includes the
prioritisation process for identifying the schemes that are included for funding with a
three stage approval process now in place to enable the prioritisation of schemes.
As a minimum all projects will formally need to pass decision points 2 and 5 as set
out in the diagram below, with the requirement to meet the intervening activities
deemed on a project by project basis. The Investment Committee will consider the
majority of projects at these points with the Combined Authority approving all
schemes at decision point 2, with subsequent decisions delegated thereafter to the
Investment Committee and/or Managing Director (as appropriate).

g) The Combined Authority’s scrutiny arrangements consist of a politically balanced
Overview and Scrutiny Committee of 18 members co-opted from the five West
Yorkshire Councils and York. This year the committee has scrutinised the effects of
COVID, business support, COVID recovery, mayoral devolution consultation and
strategic transport issues such as the new connectivity plan including plans for mass
transit in West Yorkshire. In addition, the committee has maintained an overview of
developments in preparations for the first mayoral election and getting the
organisation ‘mayor ready’ and the usual budget and corporate planning process.
13

19

The committee’s planned reviews into business support schemes and the climate
emergency were interrupted by covid-19 and the committee plans to revisit them in
the future.
In addition, the Combined Authority continues to assist and advise local Council
scrutiny enquiries where the topics affect its sphere of activity. The District
Consultation Sub-Committees in each partner council give a level of local
involvement and allow an opportunity to obtain feedback on changes to transport
policy and services.
h) The Combined Authority’s Governance and Audit Committee is responsible for
overseeing the effective operation of the systems of governance, risk management,
internal control (including internal audit) and treasury management. It has
responsibility for the approval of the annual accounts. In accordance with changes
in legislation an independent member was appointed to the Committee by the
Combined Authority at its meeting on 28 June 2018, who chaired the committee until
11th January 2021, with a member of the Combined Authority chairing thereafter. A
further independent member was appointed in 2019. An officer Regulatory and
Compliance Board chaired by the Director, Corporate and Commercial Services,
provides an operational level management and review of internal control, risk, health
and safety, information security and governance arrangements in place.
i) Staff roles are defined and documented through role profiles. These set out clear
competencies and accountabilities for each role and are key to making successful
recruitment decisions. Appointments have been made to all the posts required by
statute, including Head of Paid Service (which forms part of the Managing Director’s
role), s73 Officer (Director, Corporate and Commercial Services), and the Monitoring
Officer (Head of Legal and Governance Services).
j) Staff behaviours are guided by Combined Authority's values and its Code of Conduct
and a similar Code exists for elected Members; both employees and Members are
required to maintain a register of interests. A code of conduct for LEP Board members
has been approved and all Board members completed registers of interest which are
available for inspection on the Combined Authority website.
k) The Combined Authority conforms to the requirements of the CIPFA Statement on
the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2015). The Chief
Financial Officer is the Director, Corporate and Commercial Services who is a key
member of the leadership team and is responsible for the proper administration of the
Combined Authority’s financial arrangements through a suitably qualified and
resourced finance function.
l) An internal team provide the internal audit service to the Combined Authority. Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the purpose, authority and
responsibility of the internal audit activity to be defined in an internal audit charter,
consistent with the definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the
Standards. The Internal Audit Charter establishes internal audit's position within the
organisation, including the mandatory nature of the Chief Audit Executive's role;
functional reporting relationship with the management team; authorises access to
records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of
engagements; and defines the scope of internal audit activities.
14

20

m) Compliance with established procedures, laws and regulations is ensured by a
system that requires all decisions to set out all legal and financial implications.
Schemes of officer delegation ensure that decisions are made at the appropriate level
within the Combined Authority. Procedures and policies are in place to ensure
compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, Data Protection Act and Health and
Safety requirements. A whistleblowing policy and guidance notes have been updated
during the year and are available on the website. Regular reviews and exception
reporting are conducted through the officer Regulatory and Compliance Board and
through the Member Governance and Audit Committee, including arrangements for
risk management.
n) Risk management is embedded in the activities of the Combined Authority. A
Corporate Risk Management Strategy, including a risk policy and risk appetite
statement, has been endorsed by the Governance and Audit Committee and sets out
the way in which risks are identified, recorded and monitored. Regular review of the
key strategic risks is undertaken by the Combined Authority, the LEP Board and the
Governance and Audit Committee.
o) Communication on transport operational matters has taken place with stakeholders
through the District Consultation Sub-Committees and Operator Groups.
Consultation events have taken place during the year on the Strategic Economic
Plan, the Single Transport Plan, major schemes and the bus area network reviews
which have successfully sought to contain costs but retain accessibility for bus users.
In addition, youth engagement is now built in as we develop our bus and transport
strategy.
p) A system of formal procedures, Contracts Standing Orders and Financial Regulations
protect the organisation. These are reviewed and approved annually. A revised
Capital Strategy and Procurement Strategy were approved by the Combined
Authority in May 2020.
q) External reviews carried out by auditors and other agencies to achieve Customer
Service Excellence and other accreditations with any recommendations identified
creating a work plan for future improvements.
r) With regard to the transport ticketing systems the Combined Authority has in place
arrangements whereby an enhanced assurance statement is sought from the train
operating company Northern stating that their systems have operated adequately
with no material errors or weaknesses. Sales through the Payzone network are
reconciled to the back-office system ensuring that the proceeds from such card sales
are fully reimbursed to the Combined Authority.
4. Review of Effectiveness
The Combined Authority has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control. This review is informed by the work of the
Internal Audit section and that of management within the Combined Authority who have
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control environment, and
also by comments made by external auditors.
The Combined Authority has in place a system based on a framework of contract standing
orders, financial regulations and administrative controls including codes of conduct and
15

21

administrative policies and procedures. All key administrative controls and financial
instructions are reviewed on a regular basis by the Combined Authority’s management with
internal audit undertaking reviews based on risk. Contract standing orders and financial
regulations are updated as required and re-approved annually by the Combined Authority
at its Annual Meeting. In terms of financial accounting the Combined Authority utilises a
core financial system which is tested and evaluated annually by internal and external audit.
During the last year, the Chief Financial Officer has provided to the Governance and Audit
Committee a regular confirmation that key controls have been operating in the period.
Regular reports are also provided to the Regulatory and Compliance Board that key controls
have been operating in the period.
One of the key responsibilities within the Combined Authority is to determine, agree and
monitor the annual budget. This responsibility involves setting an appropriate budget to fulfil
the resource requirements of the Combined Authority in undertaking its transport, economic
development and regeneration activities. This budget is an integrated one for the full
breadth of the activities of the Combined Authority, including the bringing together of
transport and economic policy funding. The organisational directorate ensures that the most
effective arrangements are in place to enable delivery of the Combined Authority’s
objectives and the budget is defined to follow these arrangements.
The budget setting process requires a comprehensive budget report to be presented to the
full Combined Authority which gives a detailed forecast outturn for the current financial year
and the proposed budget for the forthcoming financial year. The budget process is overseen
and scrutinised by Members through the Member Budget Working Group, Overview and
Scrutiny Committee, Governance and Audit Committee and the Combined Authority and is
shared with the LEP Board.
Regular review of revenue and capital budgets is undertaken by senior management with
regular updates to the Combined Authority and other committees presented through the
year.
Within the Combined Authority budgetary responsibility is devolved to Budget Holders and
Controllers who are responsible for monitoring and controlling their assigned budget.
Regular budget performance reports are prepared by the Finance team for those charged
with governance to ensure ongoing budgetary control is achieved.
The Treasury Management function for the Combined Authority is undertaken in conjunction
with Leeds City Council. Their internal audit section provide an annual certification
confirming the work they have undertaken during the year and their conclusions reached.
An internal team provides the internal audit resource for the Combined Authority. The work
of Internal Audit is informed by an assessment of risk and a strategic audit plan is devised
based on these assessments. This plan and the audit reviews are submitted to the
Combined Authority’s Governance and Audit Committee for consideration and approval.
Regular update reports are provided to the Governance and Audit Committee by the Internal
Audit Manager, including progress made on the implementation of audit recommendations.
Internal Audit maintain their own systems to monitor progress in implementing audit
recommendations and report regularly to the directorate management teams and the officer
Regulatory and Compliance Board.

16

22

From the work undertaken during the financial year 2020/21 and taking into account other
sources of assurance, Internal Audit have reached the opinion that, overall, the Combined
Authority’s framework of control and governance is operating adequately.
The Combined Authority, as mentioned earlier, received approval to a revised Assurance
Framework in February 2021, with the previous approved version being effectively in use
for 2020/21. As part of the Delivery Directorate, a Portfolio Management and Appraisal
Office manages a three stage pipeline approval process, designed to support the Leeds City
Region Assurance Framework. All partner authorities delivering schemes funded by the
Combined Authority follow this framework and close working with partner authorities is key
to successful delivery of the wide ranging portfolio.
Regular reports are provided to the Investment Committee and the Combined Authority on
progress with Local Growth Deal schemes, including the projects within the West
Yorkshire plus Transport Fund.
The Combined Authority has in place risk management arrangements that are continually
reviewed and improved. Reviews of risk take place at directorate management team level,
supported by guidance on the identification, assessment and reporting of risk. An officer
Regulatory and Compliance Board meets on a periodic basis to ensure consistency in the
assessment and management of risk and to provide an overview of the process. The
Combined Authority’s strategic risk register has been regularly updated during the year and
is considered regularly by the Governance and Audit Committee and reported to the
Combined Authority and LEP Board meetings as part of the regular corporate performance
management report.
Building on the work previously undertaken on risk management, work continued to
consolidate all risk registers throughout the organisation and to ensure that risk is
considered consistently in line with the principles set out in the revised Corporate Risk
Management Strategy.
Internal Audit's Quality Assurance and Improvement Program ensures that activity is
assessed against the requirements of professional standards, the definition of Internal Audit
and the Code of Ethics as specified by the Institute of Internal Auditors.
An independent external quality review which assessed the Internal Audit function in relation
to compliance with Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS) was considered by
the Governance and Audit Committee in 2019/20. The conclusion was that the Internal Audit
activity generally conforms to the definition of internal auditing, the Code of Ethics and the
PSIAS. An action plan was determined to address recommendations for further
development of the function.
The Combined Authority has reviewed its systems of internal control, including the internal
audit function and concluded that it complies with the requirements of PSIAS and the Local
Government Application Note.
A Value For Money self-assessment was undertaken by management for the year 2020/21
and forms part of the overall opinion by the external auditors for the annual accounts.

17

23

5. Programme of Improvement
During 2020/21 the Combined Authority commenced a Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA)
Ready Programme aimed at achieving all the required government milestones needed to
become a formal mayoral authority. The key milestones were met and the West Yorkshire
Mayoral Combined Authority became law in January 2021 and work commenced on the
preparations for the election of the Mayor on 6th May 2021. The MCA Ready Programmes
continues further work into 2021/22 in preparation for the arrival of the newly elected mayor
and including a review of the internal governance arrangements to ensure they align to best
effect with the revised committee and advisory panel arrangements and that delegations are
exercised to best effect to enable transparent, accountable and effective decision making.
Proposals are developing to enhance the dedicated support for the scrutiny arrangements,
though for 2020/21 this area of work continued under the formal Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.
Building on the significant work undertaken in 2018 to ensure compliance with the
requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation, work is continuing to ensure
information security arrangements remain up to date and are regularly monitored and
reported.
6. Significant Governance Issues
This section considers any significant issues that have arisen during the year. This is by
exception only.
Covid19
The Combined Authority closed its main offices in the week commencing 16th March 2020
in response to the Government ‘lockdown’ announcements.
Office based staff continued to work from home for the majority of 2020/21 and was
facilitated by the newly introduced ICT that was implemented in January 2020. Staff could
access all relevant systems and files and business continuity plans were invoked and
adjusted internal controls introduced to key systems and processes.
The overall impact of home working was managed well during 2020/21 and the Combined
Authority continued to deliver on its corporate plans to a large degree. This was managed
through the dedication of staff, support from the Board and Senior Management and flexible
working arrangements. Additionally, financial support from Government, following
representation from the Leaders, minimised the overall financial impact to manageable
levels. The formal committee meetings continued during the year by using technologies
such as Zoom.
At the reporting date for these accounts, all controls have worked well and business as usual
is prevalent through the organisation.
Other than the Covid 19 issue, no other significant issues have arisen in the year.
We are satisfied that an effective system of internal control has been in place throughout
the financial year and is ongoing.

18

24

Throughout 2020/21 the Combined Authority has demonstrated an ongoing commitment to
best practice and good corporate governance consistent with the principles of the
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework in Local Government and this is clearly demonstrated by the
adoption of an updated Corporate Governance Code and Framework which captures and
summarises these updated principles. We are also satisfied with the improvements that are
continuing under the guidance of the Governance and Audit Committee.

Tracy Brabin

B Still

Mayor and Chair

Managing Director

July 2021

19

25

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
.30

Report to:
Date:

Governance and Audit Committee
22 July 2021

Subject:

Internal Audit Annual Opinion and Report 20/21

Director(s):

Angela Taylor, Director, Corporate and Commercial Services

Author(s):

Bron Baker, Head of Internal Audit

1.

Purpose of this report

1.1.

To ask members to consider and note the contents of the report and supporting
appendix detailing the Head of Internal Audit’s Opinion for 20/21.

2.

Background Information

2.1

As the Committee will be aware, the Head of Internal Audit is required to give
an annual opinion on controls, governance and risk management for inclusion
in the annual governance statement. This opinion needs to be based on the
work conducted by Internal Audit and takes into account other forms of
assurance for example, external assurance from partners that we work
with and management assurances (second line of defence).

2.2

While there have been some very specific issues in 20/21 related to the Covid
crisis, Internal Audit has managed to complete sufficient work against the plan,
both advisory and assurance, to enable the provision of an opinion which has
not had to be limited by the volume and scope of work undertaken for this
year.

2.3

The opinion for this last year is that systems of control, governance and risk
management have been adequate for 20/21.

2.4

As always, Internal Audit will continue to monitor progress against
recommendations made to improve controls and governance and will continue
to report progress to the Regulatory & Compliance Board. This helps to ensure
that learning and recommended areas for improvement are shared more widely
with Directorate Management Teams through their R&C Board directorate
representatives.

2.5

The Audit Report and Opinion was shared with the Senior Leadership Team at
their meeting on the 18 June 2021.

3. Tackling the Climate Emergency Implications

27

3.1

There are no direct climate emergency implications arising from this report but
the internal audit work undertaken in the year has covered areas in this regard.

4. Inclusive Growth Implications
4.1

There are no direct inclusive growth implications arising from this report.

5.

Financial implications

5.1

None.

6.

Legal implications

6.1

None.

7.

Staffing implications

7.1

None

8.

External Consultees

8.1

No external consultations have been undertaken.

9.

Recommendations

9.1

That the Committee consider and note the internal audit annual opinion.

10.

Background Documents

10.1

None.

11.

Appendices
Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Report and Opinion 2020/21

28

Appendix 1

Internal Audit Report and Opinion
2020/21
29

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1

Background
UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the Chief Audit Executive to deliver an annual internal audit opinion and
report that can be used by the organisation to inform its governance statement. The annual internal audit opinion must conclude on
the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control. The results of
work undertaken within the Annual Audit Plan are designed to support the opinion provided in the Annual Internal Audit Report
alongside any other internal or external assurances on which Internal Audit can rely.
Scope of Internal Audit Opinion 2020/21

30

In providing the annual audit opinion, it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute. The most that internal audit can
provide is a reasonable assurance that there are no major weaknesses in risk management, governance and control processes.
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work in the financial year
2020/21 and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist, or of all the improvements that may
be required.
It should also be noted that the last year has provided a number of challenges in terms of being able to progress work as normal
due to the pandemic restrictions. In the initial stages of the crisis, the audit team offered operational support by running the
processes for getting necessary equipment to staff, this was handed over to the ICT team once they had capacity to take it on.
Lockdown also created some difficulties where information was still held in non-electronic form and obviously a number of reviews
were deferred as a result of the changes to our ways of working over the last year. Audit also took the decision to focus primarily on
advice and guidance work for the first half of the year but did undertake rated assurance work in the latter half of the year to ensure
a rounded opinion could be provided.
Annual Opinion 2020/21
From the work undertaken during the financial year 2020/21 and taking into account other sources of assurance, Internal Audit
have reached the opinion that, overall, the effectiveness of the Combined Authority’s framework of control, governance and risk
management is adequate.

2

In reaching our opinion the following key factors were considered:
Risk Management
A key element of the control environment at the Combined Authority is ensuring that risk management is effectively embedded.
The Corporate Risk Management strategy was approved by the Governance and Audit Committee in January 2020. Roles and
responsibilities for risk management are clearer and recommendations made in an Internal Audit review of risk management in
2019-20 have also been implemented. Whilst there is work still to be done to further embed risk management in all the directorates
and teams within the Combined Authority progress is being made with a central team overseeing the risk management process.

31

Governance
The Combined Authority has continued to progress its development of its governance arrangements with the appropriate reviews
and refinements to delegated authorities, the assurance framework and internal governance reporting. Work has continued on
using digitisation to enhance processes but has been delayed as technical resource is sought. Completion of this work will see
more streamlined and consistent reports for decisions and Health and Safety incident reporting and progress will continue to be
monitored.
Being Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) ready absorbed a significant amount of time in 2020/21 with particular emphasis on
governance readiness and bringing the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner into the Combined Authority. This has
resulted in changes to delegations, new committee structures (particularly enhanced scrutiny) and internal directorate restructuring.
The Combined Authority does intend to review arrangements during the course of 2021/22 and Audit will continue to provide advice
and guidance as appropriate.
Summary of Whistleblowing Cases
Internal Audit continues to act as the primary contact point for the Combined Authority’s Whistleblowing Policy. During the year, one
internal referral was made, the investigation found no evidence of a breach of policy and no further action was taken after
investigation. Some suggested improvements to policy were made and will be followed up during audit assurance activity during
2021/22.
Summary of Fraud Cases

3

Internal Audit have investigated a referral for COVID-19 payment relief fraud during the year which has not been pursued as a
criminal case at this time. We did however follow up the wider contractual implications and systems weaknesses identified whilst
considering this matter.
A number of 2020/21 bi-annual National Fraud Initiative matches are also currently being considered, and further data matching is
being done internally on other information not submitted as part of this exercise.
Controls
West Yorkshire Combined Authority has continued to operate its system of controls in 2020-21 and Internal Audit has undertaken
compliance work within the business to assess how well those controls are being applied. This has identified that while controls
appear to be working adequately, there is room for improvement around policies, the need for new, more effective systems,
particularly around HR and Finance, and improved monitoring by all levels of management to ensure better compliance.
Summary of Internal Audit Work 2020-21
The work of Internal Audit against the agreed audit plan is summarised in the table below.

32

Assurance Area

Comments

Status

*Assurance level

1

Strategic planning

A high-level review of the strategic, directorate and team business
planning functions against best practice. This review has
been deferred until after the Authority has become a Mayoral
Combined Authority.

Deferred, but audit
involvement in the
development of digitised
business planning.

N/A

2

Corporate Governance
(in particular connectivity
across directorates)

Head of Internal Audit part of project delivery team for MCA
Workstream 4 – Decision Making and Committee Structures, advice
and guidance offered in the work undertaken to develop new
governance and committee arrangements.

Ongoing

Advisory

4

Comments

Status

*Assurance level

3

Management Information
Systems (MIS) –
Corporate

Business continuity/ disaster recovery and all management information
systems involved to be covered with particular emphasis on COVID-19
Recovery and lessons learned from the current crisis. We made 4
recommendations to improve record keeping, roles and responsibilities
and ensure there is adequate resource to support the plans.

Completed

Reasonable
Assurance

4

Management information
systems (MIS) – HR &
Finance now Integrated
Corporate Services
System Development

A project to develop new systems for Finance, Payroll and Human
Resources (HR) commenced as part of the MCA preparation work in
June 2020. Head of Internal Audit provided advice and guidance on
the project itself in addition to the team providing advice on processes
and controls.

Ongoing throughout the
implementation of the
new system.

Advisory

5

GDPR and data privacy

Working with the Information Governance Team the review focused
on examining policies and procurements to determine compliance
with Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) and the extent of
completion of mandatory Data Protection and Information Security
Training. We made 2 recommendations covering improvements in
compliance with DPIA requirements.

Completed

Limited Assurance

6

Culture – working
together

Given the current circumstances and the changes necessitated by
both the pandemic and MCA implications, this work was no
longer considered appropriate for this plan year.

Deferred

N/A

7

Financial – access to
future funding streams

With the move to an MCA where significant devolution funding would
be available across several areas this review was deferred.

Deferred

N/A

8

ICT including cyber
security (vulnerability
management)

Audit engaged the services of a specialist supplier to undertake an ICT
risk assessment with a view to them then providing assurance work in
line with the priorities from the assessment. The assessment was
completed in August/September 2020 and a plan for undertaking
reviews was scheduled to begin in May 2021. This reflected the
pressure that ICT was under to deliver services during the pandemic.
The specialist supplier has also been providing some additional data
analytics support that will help to inform our reviews of controls.

Risk Assessment
complete.
Reviews deferred to
21/22

Advisory

33

Assurance Area

5

Comments

Status

*Assurance level

9

Digitisation

The Head of Internal Audit has been a key member of the digitisation
workshops for both the Request for Decision (RFD) process and H&S
incident reporting workstreams.

Ongoing – Audit will
continue to advise as part
of the MCA Digital
programme.

Advisory

10

Health and safety

Previous external work identified a number of areas of improvement
required. However, this is less applicable with the move to more staff
working from home due to COVID-19, the changing health and safety
framework and any changes a Mayor may want to make. Audit has
been working on the development of the Health & Safety reporting
app to help to improve the reliability and adequacy of reporting
incidents.

Ongoing – Audit will
continue to advise as part
of the MCA Digital
programme.

Advisory

11

Climate change (Tackling
the climate emergency)

This review examined the CA’s commitment to ‘Tackling the Climate
Emergency’ and how internally it proposed to do this and how well it
was monitoring progress against an internal action plan. We made 3
recommendations to improve governance arrangements, better
monitoring of the internal action plan and enhance and increase
climate emergency awareness in the organisation.

Completed

Limited Assurance

12

Risk management

An annual health check to inform the audit opinion and follow up
actions from the 2019-20 work were largely found to have been
implemented. There is ongoing work to continue to embed risk
management processes across the organisation, there is a central
team monitoring and updating corporate and directorate risks, there is
a corporate risk strategy in place with regular updates provided to the
Governance and Audit Committee.

Draft report

Reasonable
Assurance
(draft report)

34

Assurance Area

6

Comments

Status

*Assurance level

13

HR compliance follow up
review

This review was combined with the work on the HR Strategy
Implementation (see 21 below) and the Workforce Development
Devolution workstream (currently 22). schedule. We made 5
recommendations which included reviewing the HR Strategy and
Workplan, staff performance review process and ensuring HR policies
were up to date and readily accessible.

Draft report

Limited Assurance
(draft report)

14

Programme assurance

A rolling programme of reviews to be undertaken to health check that
projects and programmes are moving appropriately through the
relevant processes, and how well we are applying our preferred project
management methodology.

Energy
Accelerator Contract
Review- Report issued

Advisory

15

Counter fraud work

Internal Audit have developed, gained approval for and published
updated policies on Whistleblowing, Anti- Fraud and Corruption and
Anti Money Laundering in the plan year.
Investigative work is carried out on whistleblowing, National Fraud
Initiative (NFI) and other fraud referrals as these are identified.
Ongoing proactive work is being undertaken using data analytics
testing and reviews on high-risk areas to provide assurance on
controls.

Ongoing

N/A

16

Security of assets
(Land and Property)

This review examined the adequacy of systems to safeguard and
secure land and property assets ensuring compliance with Financial
Regulations and Contract Standing Orders. We made 2
recommendations that there was a periodic reconciliation of the asset
property database and, documenting the insurance management
process particularly around protecting the CA’s assets against losses.

Draft report

Reasonable
Assurance

17

Compliance with
Contracts Standing
Orders & Financial
Regulations

This has been done via Internal Audit representation on the ICS
project board (see 4 above) and Audit has contributed to the ‘as is’ and
‘to be’ process work undertaken in the run up to the procurement of the
new ERP system – this will continue throughout the implementation of
the system ensuring early advice on controls

Ongoing

Advisory

35

Assurance Area

7

Assurance Area

Comments

Status

*Assurance level

Other work to be done using data analytics to detect non-compliance/
potential duplicate payments.

36

18

Equalities

The review examined the CA’s vision, processes to comply with its
Public Sector Equality Duty and equality processes. The review also
facilitated an internal assessment against the LGA Equality Framework
for Local Government. We made 4 recommendations to improve and
refresh the CA’s vision, review and update the EDI action plan, ensure
better accessibility of the CA’s website and undertake a further review
against the EFLG.

Completed

Limited Assurance

19

Procurement

Compliance checks were undertaken on a sample of contract waivers
and procurements. 2 recommendations were made to improve
procurement documentation.

Completed

Reasonable
Assurance

20

Contract management –
Web3

This Lessons Learned review at the request of Senior Leadership
Team focused on the Web3 project to redevelop the CA’s websites
and examined how well the contract was monitored and
managed. Internal Audit made a number of suggestions to improve
controls and processes in relation to project governance and contract
management.

Completed

Advisory

21

HR Strategy
implementation

See 13 above.

See 13 above.

N/A

22

Devolution

Significant resource has been allocated to the introduction of devolved
Adult Education Budgets (AEB). This has included involvement on
their project board and the various workstreams, as well as the
development of an Audit and Assurance framework. Details are
provided in the ‘MCA Readiness’ narrative below.
Considered other workstreams as part of relevant assurance areas as
detailed elsewhere (Corporate Governance, Climate Change- and HR
Strategy/ Compliance)

Ongoing

Advisory

8

Assurance Area

Comments

Status

*Assurance level

There has also been significant focus on PCC transfer which has
included agreeing new governance arrangements for the committees
and reporting of audit work by the PCC/WYP shared service.

37

23

Brexit

While the COVID-19 crisis and Devolution deals resulted in a shift in
the priority accorded to this area within the business and from
government, the relevance of this audit became of less relevant.

Removed from Plan

N/A

24

Quality Assurance

A review of the quality standards the CA is subject to and the
assurance it seeks to ensure these are being met. This will also be
considered as part of the development of an assurance reporting
framework.

Deferred

N/A

25

Skills and property

Due to current Covid-19 circumstances and the MCA readiness work,
this will be considered as part of other reviews specifically HR and
MCA.

Considered as part of
other reviews.

N/A

26

Construction (Design and
Management) CDM

This was a specific piece of work relating to Health & Safety (currently
10) and has been deferred to engage external consultants.

Deferred

N/A

27

Safeguarding

This was initially proposed by Transport Services with regards to their
role with children and young people, however it may need expanding
after considering new responsibilities after devolution, such as
vulnerable adults receiving adult education.

Deferred to 2021-22

N/A

28

Complaints handling/
casework

These processes were considered as part of the MCA Readiness
Workstreams, with potential links to CTP digitisation, the Head of
Internal Audit was involved with both these projects providing advice
and guidance on controls and governance.

Deferred to 2021-22

N/A

9

38

Assurance Area

Comments

Status

*Assurance level

29

Various grant
certifications

See grants section below.

Completed

N/A

30

LTP Grant Audit - NEW

This was a focused audit to follow up on previous recommendations
and to highlight two more as a result of the work undertaken. 2
recommendations to improve controls were made to ensure grants
documentation is complete.

Completed

Reasonable
Assurance

31

AEB Procurement DPS
Stage one - NEW

This review focused on the process of assessing applications received
at Stage One of the Adult Education Budget tender exercise using a
Dynamic Purchasing System framework. We made 3
recommendations to improve record keeping, improve documentation
and accurately recording information.

Completed

Reasonable
Assurance

32

Emergency Active Travel
Fund

Audit undertook checks on expenditure and made 2 recommendations
to address issues identified with the declaration forms and ensuring
information was accurate and complete.

Completed

Reasonable
Assurance

*Level of
Assurance
Reasonable

Description

Limited

There is an adequate framework of controls in place but the
controls are not being consistently applied to ensure the risks are
managed effectively.

There is a good framework of controls in place and the majority
of controls are being consistently applied to ensure risks are
managed effectively.

10

Minimal

There is a weak framework of control in place and/or the controls
are not being consistently applied to ensure the risks are
managed effectively.

Grant Certification work

39

Internal Audit resource has been used to check and certify a significant number of funding streams which has required the Head of
Internal Audit to sign off that expenditure had been incurred in accordance with the grant funding terms and conditions. The
outcome of this work has helped to form an opinion on the control environment. During the year we provided certification to the
following;
Funding Body

Grant

Claim value (£)

Description of grant

Department for
Transport

BSOG

2,063,592

Grant certified that was paid to operators of eligible bus services and community
transport organisations to help them recover some of their fuel costs.

Department for
Transport

Emergency Active
Travel Fund (EATF)
Tranche 1

2,513,000

Grant certified to provide support to local authorities towards expenditure of safe
streets for walking and cycling.

Department for
Transport

LTP

7,500,000

A total of £41m provided to local authorities for local capital transport expenditure,
audit were required to certify the claim.

Dept for Business
Energy and Industrial
Strategy

Growth Service BEIS

544,067

2 claims certified. Grant for giving advice to businesses by the Leeds City Region
LEP supporting the further development of Growth Hubs

European Regional
Development Fund/

Strategic Business
Growth

664,436

4 quarterly claims certified, to provide an integrated package of advisory and
financial support to help SMEs across Leeds City Region with growth potential.

11

Funding Body

Grant

Claim value (£)

Description of grant

European Regional
Development Fund

Investment
Readiness

534,571

4 quarterly claims certified. Grant to help small and medium sized businesses
(SMEs) better understand the full range of finance options and products available
and put them in the best position to apply for investment.

European Regional
Development Fund

Access Innovation

1,368,096

3 grant claims certified, this program was created to help businesses to innovate
across Leeds City Region at the same level as other regions by enabling them
access to specialist knowledge.

European Regional
Development Fund

ReBiz (REF2)

527,008

4 grant claims certified, grant to support SMEs identify and implement cost effective
improvements in energy and resource efficiency.

European Regional
Development Fund

REF

98,933

1 claim certified, grant provided to eligible businesses to receive advice and financial
support to become more resource efficient.

European Structural
Investment Fund

Connecting
Innovation

210,568

3 claims certified, grant to assist SMEs to develop new products and processes by
facilitating collaborative relationships with research-focused organisations.

Interreg SHARE-North

SMARTY

37,220

3 claims certified, Grant focused on SMEs and innovation within modular structured
smart factories, cyber-physical systems monitor physical processes.

Interreg SHARE-North

Interreg Share North
(TPN)

113,426

2 claims certified. Grant provided 50% match funding.

North Sea Region
Programme

ART

980

Grant certified impact that automated transport could have on the entire road
transport system and life in cities and regions.

Department for
Transport

CBSSG

781,448

Grant certified to support restart of Bus services during Covid-19.

European Structural
Investment Fund

40

MCA Readiness
Adult Education Budget (AEB) Project
The Combined Authority is to manage the £65 million devolved Adult Education Budget (AEB) from August 2021. One of the
Principal Internal Auditors has been working on a 0.5 FTE basis on this project to identify assurance requirements and assist in the
design of appropriate controls and performance management arrangements for the providers we will be managing.
12

41

Internal Audit have been active Project Board members, providing support at a strategic level. The Principal Auditor who leads on
this area has also been involved in work on the following workstreams:

Audit and Assurance- developing the potential coverage of a compliance visit and other necessary assurances and tasks to
be carried out by Internal Audit staff to support AEB delivery in line with the proposed post implementation operational
resources model. This has included drafting what roles and responsibilities will be undertaken by Internal Audit regarding
compliance and assurance once AEB is live and developing resource plans in line with this.

Procurement- advising on the review and publication of the DPS and mini-competition documents, tender queries raised and
grant agreement and contracts as required.

Legal and governance- developing workstream tasks with the core Project team and advising on various governance and
organisational matters including risk registers, approvals and project documentation.

ICT and data- helping to compile system requirements and how these might be delivered as part of the working group on this
area, including those specifically for audit and assurance and reviewing systems to meet these, reviewing the proposed
payments system and identifying data analysis requirements and tools needed to assist in performance management.

Finance- developing our approach to accounting for resource and the assurance processes over expenditure in preparation for
the funding claims made of the Department for Education at both the implementation and operational stages.

Operational provider management- working with the AEB and Finance teams to develop Funding Rules, the performance
management framework and a risk scoring matrix to cover all our providers, based on various information sources, to assist in
their management operationally once we go live.
Key Internal Audit contributions have included:

Ensuring Readiness Conditions relating to corporate control measures submitted to the Department for Education, alongside a
letter from the Managing Director stating the organisation’s readiness, and how it expects to improve the exercise of statutory
functions in the area were submitted in May 2020.

Liaison with the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) and other MCA’s on the Audit and Assurance and Fraud
Investigations (AAFI) group.

A review has been completed by the main Internal Audit Team on Stage 1 of the Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) process.
Future tasks involve the development of a Performance Management staffing structure that has been fully resourced and for which
recruitment has commenced, including a further full time Principal Internal Auditor and three Internal Auditors. We will also be:
13





Assisting in the onboarding of over 40 providers;
Ensuring appropriate payment processes are in place prior to August 2021 when the first payments are due; and
Onboarding further Internal Audit team members to support the provision of a programme of compliance visits.

Third-Party Assurance
Treasury Management
Leeds City Council has confirmed that a strong control environment continues to operate, but changes to their 20/21 plan due to
Covid has meant that the audit has been deferred to 21/22.

42

Conformance with PSIAS
The work of Internal Audit must be conducted in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Conformance
with the standards provides an indication of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit. In doing so, assessment against the
standards and CIPFA local government application note and development of Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme
(QAIP) is essential. The QAIP must include a combination of internal and external assessments, internal assessments are periodic
and ongoing whereas an external assessment must be carried out at least once every 5 years.
It has previously been reported that an external quality assessment of the Internal Audit activity was performed in April 2019. This
assessment concluded that overall Internal Audit “generally conforms” with the requirements of the definition of Internal Audit, the
Code of Ethics and PSIAS. The assessment highlighted a number of actions to address areas for improvement which have formed
part of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) for Internal Audit. Progress against the QAIP has been
monitored throughout 2020-21 and updates provided to the Governance and Audit Committee for example by reporting a revised
Internal Audit Charter and Code of Ethics.
The QAIP has been kept under regular review and Internal Audit effectiveness continues to be developed to ensure progress is
made against areas identified for improvement.
Follow ups

14

Once recommendations are agreed with Management and an implementation timetable set, the action is recorded in the Audit
Actions Register. These actions then form part of an ongoing cycle of follow up work during the year and progress is reported to the
Governance and Audit Committee. Recommendations are followed up to ensure that they are implemented and where there is
delay the Regulatory and Compliance Board is advised. In addition, we track all outstanding recommendations (including prior
years) across directorates as part of the internal performance monitoring and future audit planning.
Performance Indicators

43

PI area

PI description

Target

Actual performance

Issuing Reports

Final report on audits to be issued within one calendar
week of the final agreed deadline

100%

100%

Grant Claims

Grant claims processed within three working days of a fully
completed file being received

90%

96%

Customer Feedback

Number of customer feedback questionnaires returned

70%

50%

Customer Feedback

Overall positive customer satisfaction rating

80%

100%

The customer feedback figures are based on low numbers this year as the assurance work was delayed until the latter stages of
20/21, we are still chasing customers to increase the number of questionnaires returned.

15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
.30

Report to:

Governance and Audit Committee

Date:

22 July 2021

Subject:

Internal Audit Progress Report

Director(s):

Angela Taylor, Director, Corporate and Commercial Services

Author(s):

Bron Baker, Head of Internal Audit

1.

Purpose of this report

1.1.

To ask members to consider the contents of the report and supporting appendix
detailing progress against delivery of the current 2021-22 internal audit plan.

2.

Information
Audit Delivery for 2021/22

2.1

Work against the plan for 21/22 is now underway following a short delay while
the Audit Team concluded the assurance work for 20/21. This was as a result
of primarily undertaking advisory work and providing some operational support
in the initial stages of the year due to the Covid crisis. Audit determined that it
needed to do sufficient assurance/compliance work in the latter stages of the
year to allow for a balanced audit opinion that was not limited due to scope.

2.2

There are reviews currently in progress on health and safety and contract
management (looking in detail at some specific contracts) and work is
underway to scope reviews on safeguarding and financial controls. The
ongoing support to develop the assurance framework for the Adult Education
Budget (AEB) programme is also continuing at pace.
Recruitment

2.3

Recruitment is in progress at the moment in relation to AEB with an initial focus
on a Principal Auditor role and will be followed by further recruitment later in the
year for auditors. This will ensure that provider assurances will be delivered in
line with the AEB strategy and will, of course, add to the audit opinion for 21/22.
Fraud/ Whistleblowing/ Money Laundering

2.4

There have not been any further whistleblowing referrals since the last report
and the external fraud referral first highlighted in the November set of
Committee papers is now concluded with no further action to take. Total

45

numbers for the year remain as reported to the last Committee which is
confirmed in the progress update at Appendix 1.
3. Tackling the Climate Emergency Implications
3.1

There are no climate emergency implications directly arising from this report.

4. Inclusive Growth Implications
4.1

There are no inclusive growth implications directly arising from this report

5. Financial implications
5.1

None.

6. Legal implications
6.1.
7.
7.1

None.
Staffing implications
As identified above, recruitment is underway to resource AEB assurance work.

8. External Consultees
8.1

No external consultations have been undertaken.

9. Recommendations
9.1

That the Committee consider and note the internal audit progress to date.

10. Background Documents
None.
11. Appendices
Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Progress Report July 2021

46

Appendix 1

47

Governance & Audit
Committee Internal Audit
Progress Report
July 2021
Agenda Item 8

Appendix 1

Key Headlines / Index
Top three issues – PCC transfer arrangements as we work through the details in a practical sense, similarly Mayoral governance
arrangements and current Covid impacts including transport and business support
Progress against 2021/22 Audit Plan and any planned changes - detailed at pages 4-7
Outstanding actions- Audit are currently agreeing new implementation dates for a number of outstanding audit actions in relation to contract
management. Progress against these recommendations has been delayed due to resource deployment during Covid and difficulties in quickly
recruiting to specialist procurement areas.

Counter Fraud, Whistleblowing and Anti Money Laundering

48

The fraud referral that was referenced in the last progress update to GAC has now concluded after an initial investigation. There
was no action that the Combined Authority could take as the complainant did not hold a contract directly with the Authority. They
have been referred elsewhere to progress their issue. The table below provides a summary of referrals reported during 2021-22.
Total number of
referrals 21/22

Investigation completed
- No breach/no further
action

Investigation completed
– further action taken

Still under investigation

Fraud - External

1

1

NA

NA

Fraud - Internal

0

NA

NA

NA

Whistleblowing

0

NA

NA

NA

AML

0

NA

NA

NA

-2-

Grant certification
Internal Audit resource continues to provide certification in accordance with the funding bodies grant determination letter requiring
the Head of Internal Audit to sign off expenditure incurred. To date, in 2021-22, we have reviewed and certified the following grants.

49

Grant
Investment Readiness
Connecting Innovation
Rebiz (REF2)
Strategic Business Growth
Art Forum Interreg
BEIS Core Funding
BEIS EU Transition Funding
BEIS BEIS Uplift Funding
Brownfield Housing Fund

Claim Period
Qrt 4 2020-21
Qrt 4 2020-21
Qrt 4 2020-21
Qrt 4 2020-21
Annual 2020-21
Annual 2020-21
Annual 2020-21
Annual 2020-21
Annual 2020-21

No significant matters arose during the certification of these grants.

-3-

Value certified £
156,219
109,224
214,339
264,636
3,629
512,500
248,550
267,500
551,843

2021/22 Internal Audit Plan
Provenance

Link to Corporate
Risks/Priorities

Current
Status/Timetable

1

Integrated Corporate System
(HR, Finance, Payroll)

Corporate Risk Register

Transformational
Change (CRR-TC1)

This review will focus on
current finance systems
as the ICS system has
been delayed. We are
currently scoping a review
of the Creditors (accounts
payable) system.

2

Covid: grants and recovery

Corporate Risk Register,
Service Delivery and
External Horizon Scanning (Risk Operational; Finance
in Focus)
and Resources (NEW)

Part of Counter Fraud
work

3

GDPR and data privacy

Corporate Risk Register,
Legal and Compliance
External Horizon Scanning (Risk risk (CRR-LC1)
in Focus)

Quarter 4

4

ICT – various, including Cyber
Security

Corporate Risk Register,
Safety and Security
External Horizon Scanning (Risk (CRR-SS2)
in Focus)

Quarter 2,3,4

50

Assurance Area

-4-

51

5

Health & Safety including
processes around claims

Corporate Risk Register,
Legal and Compliance
In progress
External Horizon Scanning (Risk risk (CRR-LC1), Safety
in Focus)
and Security (CRR-SS1)

6

Climate Change

Corporate Risk Register,
Environmental (CRRExternal Horizon Scanning (Risk E1)
in Focus)

Quarter 3

7

Project and Programme
Assurance (various reviews)

Corporate Risk Register,
Service Delivery and
External Horizon Scanning (Risk Operational
in Focus)
(CRR-SD1)

In progress – Flood
Management

8

Equalities

Corporate Priorities

Legal and Compliance
(CRR – LC1)

Quarter 4

9

Procurement

Combined Authority Financial
Regulations, External Horizon
Scanning (Risk in Focus)

Corporate Priorities

Quarter 2-3

10

Contract Management

Corporate Risk Register

Service Delivery and
Operational (CRR-SD1)

Scoping

11

MCA Workstreams

Corporate Risk Register

Transformational
Change (CRR-TC1)

Quarter 2

-5-

52

12

Risk Management

Annual health check to inform
the audit opinion

Corporate Priorities

Quarter 4

13

HR

Corporate Risk Register,
Transformational
External Horizon Scanning (Risk Change (CRR-TC1)
in Focus)

Quarter 3

14

AEB

Various reviews in line with
newly developed assurance
framework for AEB

Corporate Priorities

Ongoing advice and
guidance, to be followed
by provider assurance in
Q4

15

Counter Fraud work including a
review of business support
Covid grants

Combined Authority Financial
Regulations

Corporate Priorities

Quarter 3

16

Security of Assets

Combined Authority Financial
Regulations

Corporate Priorities

Quarter 3

17

Compliance with Contracts
Standing Orders & Financial
Regulations

Combined Authority Financial
Regulations

Transformational
Change (CRR – TC1)

Scoping

18

Complaints Handling/Casework

Corporate Risk Register

Transformational
Change (CRR – TC1)

Quarter 3

19

Safeguarding

Corporate Risk Register

Corporate Priorities

Scoping

20

Grant Audits

In line with funding applications
and funding agreements

Corporate Priorities

As requested by funders

-6-

Attendance on Boards

Advice and guidance to inform
the control framework

Transformational
Change (CRR – TC1)

Ongoing

22

Various grant certifications

In line with funding applications
and funding agreements

Corporate Priorities

See above grants table

23

Commercial

SLT request – value add review

Corporate Priorities

Quarter 4

24

Bus Funding Model

SLT request – probity and
monitoring of contracts

Service Delivery and
Operational (CRR –
SD3)

Quarter 2-3

25

Insolvencies

SLT request – our response to
insolvencies

Development and
Regeneration CRR –
DR1

Quarter 4

26

Inter Directorate Working - Use
of SLAs/MOUs

SLT request –
benchmarking/advice and
guidance

Corporate Priorities

Quarter 4

53

21

-7-

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
.30

Report to:

Governance and Audit Committee

Date:

22 July 2021

Subject:

External audit progress report

Director(s):

Angela Taylor, Director, Corporate and Commercial Services.

Author(s):

Jon Sheard

1.

Purpose of this report

1.1

To provide an update on external audit matters that have occurred since the
last meeting.

2.

Information
Annual Accounts 2020/21

2.1

The draft accounts were prepared, published by May 2021 and shared with
our external auditors. This is ahead of the required / extended date due to the
national pandemic but due to other work priorities, it was agreed that we would
prepare the draft accounts by the historic deadline of 31st May.

2.2

The external audit has commenced and is due to report their final opinion to
the meeting on 30th September 2021. The external auditor progress report is
attached at Appendix 1 and Mazars are in attendance at today’s meeting to
provide an update and respond to any committee member comments.
Other External Updates

2.3

It was reported to members previously that a fee variation for the 2019/20
annual audit work was expected and at the time it was estimated at £3,000 in
addition to our standard scale fee of £25,964, with the increase being a cost
seen nationally across all audits and not as a result of failings locally. A
breakdown of the final additional fees are shown in the table below and are in
line with expectations.

55

Other audit matters – Update
2.4

It is brought to the committee’s attention that the government recently
published (19/5/2021) the update report to Sir Tony Redmond’s independent
review into the oversight of local audit and the transparency of local authority
financial reporting. A letter setting out the position and next steps is attached
at Appendix 2.

2.5

The letter sets out an overview of proposed changes to the leadership of local
audit and also confirms that it is expected that PSAA Limited will continue to
fulfil the role of procuring and appointing external auditors.

2.6

During Autumn 2021 all local government and police bodies will need to make
decisions about their external audit arrangements for the period commencing
from the financial year 2023/24, in particular whether to continue to use the
existing PSAA Ltd route to make the appointment. PSAA Ltd has recently
issued a draft prospectus setting out further details –LINK to the website. A
report will be brought to the next meeting of the Committee setting out any
actions required.

3.

Tackling the Climate Emergency Implications

3.1

There are no climate emergency implications directly arising from this report.

4.

Inclusive Growth Implications

4.1

There are no inclusive growth implications directly arising from this report

5.

Financial Implications

5.1

As set out in the report.

6.

Legal Implications

6.1

There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.

7.

Staffing Implications

7.1

There are no staffing implications directly arising from this report.

56

8.

External Consultees

8.1

No external consultations have been undertaken.

9.

Recommendations

9.1

That the Committee consider the information provided on external audit
matters.

10.

Background Documents
None.

11.

Appendices
Appendix 1 – External audit progress report – 2020/21 annual audit
Appendix 2 – MHCLG letter further to Redmond Review

57

This page is intentionally left blank

Audit Progress Report

59

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

1. Audit progress
2. National publications

60
2

Section 01:
Audit progress

61

Audit progress
Purpose of this report
This report provides the Governance and Audit Committee with an update on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors and also includes, at
Section 2, for your information, a summary of recent national reports and publications.
2020/21 audit
We completed our planning visit in March and issued our Audit Strategy Memorandum to the March Governance and Audit Committee. MHCLG has again extended the
reporting timetable for 2020/21. WYCA is required to publish draft financial statements by 31 July 2021 and audited financial statements by 30 September 2021. Following
discussions with the Authority’s Finance team we received draft financial statements 1 June 2021. We are currently completing our fieldwork and plan to complete our audit
by 30 September 2021 (subject to receipt of appropriate assurances from the pension fund auditors).

62

Our work on WYCA’s value-for-money arrangements is in progress. As set out in section 2 of this report, the National Audit Office has updated its Auditor Guidance Note to
take account of the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. This extends the deadline for issuing our VFM commentary and Auditor’s Annual Report to no later than three months
after issuing our audit opinion. We will continue our work on value for money arrangements throughout the audit and discuss the timing of reporting with management in due
course.

6 July 2021

4

Section 02:
National publications

63

National Publications
Publication/update

Key points

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountability (CIPFA)
1.

Consultation on stronger Prudential Code

CIPFA is consulting on the Prudential Code, including proposals to strengthen the requirements for
commercial investments.

2.

Fraud and Corruption Tracker

CIPFA’s latest information has been published.

3.

CIPFA Bulletin 06 – Application of the Good
Governance Framework 2020/21

Provides updated guidance and takes into account the introduction of the CIPFA Financial Management
Code 2019 during 2020/21.

4.

CIPFA Bulletin 09: Closure of the 2020-21
Financial Statements, 30 April 2021

This bulletin provides guidance for local government bodies on a range of issues that may need to
considered as part of their 2020-21 accounts preparation.

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)

64

5.

6.

7.

MHCLG’s Consultation on amendments to the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015

Consultation closed on the 1st March 2021; the Accounts deadline was set as 31 July 2021 and Audit
deadline of 30 September 2021.

MHCLG - Methodology for allocating £15 million
£15 million in additional funding is available in 2021/22 towards external audit fees. Consultation on
to local bodies and review of Appointing Person
amending the timescale for setting fee scales.
regulations, 20 April 2021
A new regulator, the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA), to replace the FRC, preferred
MHCLG - Local authority financial reporting and
system leader. Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) role to continue into next national
external audit: Spring update, 19 May 2021
procurement.

National Audit Office (NAO)
8.

Local government finance in the pandemic,
March 2021

The report found that the Department’s successful monthly collection of data and continued intensive
engagement with the sector provided a good evidence base to underpin the financial and other support
provided by government.

6 July 2021

6

National Publications
Publication/update

Key points

National Audit Office (NAO)
Timeliness of local auditor reporting in
England, 2020

The report is based on published data, the views of local authority finance directors, key stakeholders in
the audit landscape, and audit firms.

10.

Public service pensions

This report outlines how the public service pensions landscape has changed since the Hutton Review
and highlights key challenges for the future.

11.

NAO Updated Guidance for Auditors, April 2021

Revised guidance for VFM arrangements work under the new Code of Audit Practice, including
extended deadlines, and updated guidance on consideration of going concern in the public sector
context.

12.

NAO Report – Initial learning from the
government’s response to the COVID-19
pandemic, May 2021

Latest NAO report on learning from the government response to the pandemic.

65

9.

6 July 2021

7

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
CIPFA

1. CIPFA consults on a stronger Prudential Code, January 2021
CIPFA has launched a consultation on proposals to strengthen the Prudential Code, following growing concerns over local government commercial property
investments. The Prudential Code is a professional code of practice that aims to ensure local authorities’ financial plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. To date, the
provisions in the Code have not prevented a minority of councils from taking on disproportionate levels of commercial debt to generate yield. The proposed changes are
intended to prevent future misinterpretations of the Code and strengthen the necessary regard to its provisions to protect local decision making and innovation. The
consultation will be open for 10 weeks and responses must be submitted by 12 April 2021.
https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-consults-on-stronger-local-government-prudential-code

66

2. Fraud and corruption Tracker, February 2021
The latest CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker (CFaCT), which includes local government data between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020, provides a baseline illustration
about the prevalence of grant fraud in the public sector, just before unprecedented levels of COVID-19 grant funding for councils were released by the government in March
of last year. The report follows previous warnings from the National Crime Agency and other law enforcement bodies of an increase in cases related to suspected COVID-19
grant fraud. Valued at an estimated loss of £36.6m, the report reveals only 161 instances of grant fraud occurred in 2019/20.
The report also shows that council tax continued to be the largest area of identified fraud for councils, with more than 30,600 cases totalling £35.9m in 2019/20. This year,
32% of respondents also stated their organisation had been a victim of a Distributed Denial-of-Service (DDOS)/hacking attack in the last 12 months, a 5% increase from the
previous year. Survey respondents also expressed concern about councils' inability to tackle usual areas of fraud due to resource being re-directed into the processing and
review of COVID-19 business grants.
https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/grant-fraud-represented-less-than-of-uk-public-sector-fraud-pre-pandemic

8

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
CIPFA

3. CIPFA Bulletin 06, Application of the Good Governance Framework 2020/21, February 2021
This bulletin covers the impact of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic on governance in local government bodies and the requirements of the Delivering Good Governance
in Local Government Framework 2016 CIPFA and Solace (the Framework). It also takes into account the introduction of the CIPFA Financial Management Code 2019 (FM
Code) during 2020/21.
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/cipfa-bulletins/cipfa-bulletin-06-application-of-the-good-governance-framework-202021

67

4. CIPFA Bulletin 09: Closure of the 2020-21 Financial Statements, 30 April 2021
Auditors will wish to be aware that CIPFA have published Bulletin 09: Closure of the 2020-21 Financial Statements. This bulletin provides guidance for local government
bodies on a range of issues that may need to be considered as part of their 2020-21 accounts preparation.
Hot topics include accounting for grant funding in the pandemic, accounting for dedicated schools grant deficits and accounting for collection fund surpluses and deficits in
2020/21.
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/cipfa-bulletins/cipfa-bulletin-09-closure-of-the-202021-financial-statements

9

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
MHCLG
5. MHCLG’s Consultation on amendments to the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, February 2021
MCHLG has consulted on its proposed changes to the accounts publication deadline for 2020/21 and 2021/22.
The draft regulations includes provisions, at regulation 2 to change the publication deadline for principal authorities from 31 July to 30 September as proposed in
recommendation 10 by the Redmond review, but for 2 years - 2020/21 and 2021/22. The intention is for the amended deadline to be reviewed after that period when it will
be clearer as to whether the audit completion rate has improved.
The draft regulations also enable principal bodies to publish their draft accounts for inspection, linked to the later publication deadline, by removing the fixed period for public
inspection, to say instead that the draft accounts must be published on or before the first working day of August. This will allow authorities and audit firms more flexibility to
schedule their audits in line with the later publication deadline but, importantly, will not prevent them from being signed off earlier. This mirrors the approach taken in the
Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (Coronavirus) Regulations 2020.

68

MCHLG’s consultation closed on 1 March 2021.

6. MHCLG - Methodology for allocating £15 million to local bodies and review of Appointing Person regulations, 20 April 2021
The Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (MHCLG) announced as part of its response to the Redmond Review, that it would provide £15 million in
additional funding in 2021/22 towards external audit fees and the development of the proposed new standardised statement of service information and costs. The
department has now launched a short, four-week consultation, seeking views on the on the methodology for allocating these funds to local bodies.
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/consultation-on-allocation-of-15-million-to-local-bodies-for-audit/redmond-review-response-changes-to-the-audit-feesmethodology-for-allocating-15-million-to-local-bodies
Running alongside this, the department has also launched a separate six-week consultation on the implementation of changes to the fee setting process for principal bodies
set out in the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. The consultation primarily seeks views on amending the timescale for setting fee scales, enabling the
appointing person to consult on and approve a standardised additional fee, and for such payments to be made in year rather than at the completion of the audit.
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/amendments-to-local-audit-fee-setting-arrangements

10

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
MHCLG
7. MHCLG - Local authority financial reporting and external audit: Spring update, 19 May 2021
In December 2020, MHCLG delivered its response to the Redmond Review. This report details the actions already taken to implement the Redmond Review
recommendations, and also sets out the government’s thinking on the recommendations relating to systems leadership.
In March 2021 the government published a White Paper setting out its plans to reform corporate audit, reporting and governance. The White Paper set out details of how
the government proposes to establish a new regulator, the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA), to replace the FRC. It also set out government plans to
create a new audit profession that is distinct from the accountancy profession, and to encourage competition in the market for audit of large listed companies. We have
looked at options for local audit in the context of these wider reforms.
In this context, it is our view that ARGA, the new regulator being established to replace the FRC, would be best placed to take on the local audit system leader role.

69

The Department welcomes the changes made in the latest Code of Audit Practice in relation to VFM reporting. Until recently, the Code required auditors to give a binary
opinion on whether the proper arrangements were in place. However, this was revised in the recent update to the Code, which now requires auditors to provide a narrative
statement on the arrangements in place. The department welcomes this change, as it is our view that the binary value for money judgement required under the previous
Code did not provide sufficient information for taxpayers or local bodies, particularly in a context where the complexity and commercialisation of local authority finances has
increased. The new value for money requirements in the updated Code including a new commentary on governance, arrangements for achieving financial sustainability, and
improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness - should help to address this.
MHCLG has confirmed that PSAA is the organisation best placed to act as the appointing body, including overseeing the next procurement of audit contracts. There is a
balance to be struck between cost and quality. Historically, there were concerns that fees were too high and it was right that real savings were delivered for the taxpayer
following the abolition of the Audit Commission. However, the context has changed since 2014, including the structure of the market, plus new obligations and the
complexity of the work. It is striking that local audit scale fees reduced by 40% between 2014/15 and 2018/19, while central government and FTSE100 fees have increased
by 20%. We have been working closely with PSAA in recent months to develop our plans for allowing greater flexibility to reflect additional costs in audit fees, and are
allocating £15m to local bodies to help with this and the additional requirements associated with implementing Redmond’s recommendations.
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-spring-update/local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-springupdate

6 July 2021

11

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
National Audit Office

8. Local government finance in the pandemic, March 2021
The NAO published its report Local government finance in the pandemic in March 2021. Local authorities in England have made a major contribution to the national
response to the pandemic. This has in turn placed significant pressure on finances, which in many cases were already under strain. The report examines if MHCLG’s
approach to local government finance in the COVID-19 pandemic enabled the Department to assess and fund the costs of the new services which local authorities have
been asked to deliver. It also examines whether the Department fulfilled its responsibilities in securing financial sustainability across the sector. The report focuses on:
• the financial health of the sector before the pandemic and the financial impact of the pandemic in 2020/21;

70

• action taken by the government to support the sector in 2020/21, including its effectiveness; and
• action taken by government to support the sector’s financial sustainability in 2021/22.
The report found that the Department’s successful monthly collection of data and continued intensive engagement with the sector provided a good evidence base to
underpin the financial and other support provided by government. Action by the Department and wider government to support the sector averted system-wide financial
failure at a very challenging time and means that the Department managed the most severe risks to value for money in the short term.
However, the financial position of local government remains a cause for concern. Many authorities will be relying on reserves to balance their 2020/21 year-end budgets.
Despite continuing support into 2021/22, the outlook for next year is uncertain. Many authorities are setting budgets for 2021/22 in which they have limited confidence, and
which are balanced through cuts to service budgets and the use of reserves.
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-government-finance-in-the-pandemic/

6 July 2021

12

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
National Audit Office

9. NAO Report – Timeliness of local auditor reporting in England, 2020
On 16 March, the NAO published its report Timeliness of local auditor reporting on local government in England, 2020. Since 2015, the Comptroller and Auditor General
(C&AG) has been responsible for setting the standards for local public audit in England, through maintaining a Code of Audit Practice and issuing associated guidance to
local auditors. This report sets out the:
• roles and responsibilities of local auditors and national bodies to the local audit framework in England; and

71

• facts relating to the decline in the timeliness of delivering audit opinions on local government in England and the main factors contributing to that decline in timeliness.
The report is based on published data, the views of local authority finance directors, key stakeholders in the audit landscape, and audit firms. The report also considers the
impact on central government. Given the increasing financial challenge and service pressures on local authorities since 2010, local councils need strong arrangements to
manage finances and secure value for money.
The report concludes that the position for 2019/20, with 55% of local authorities failing to publish audited accounts by 30 November, is concerning, given the important part
that external audit plays in assurance over taxpayers’ money both centrally and locally.
Since the NAO reported on local authority governance and audit in 2019, and despite efforts by the various organisations involved in the local audit system and by the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, the report concludes that the situation has worsened. The increase in late audit opinions, concerns about audit
quality and doubts over audit firms’ willingness to continue to audit local authorities all highlight that the situation needs urgent attention, which will require co-operation and
collaboration by all bodies involved in the local audit system, together with clear leadership from government.
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/timeliness-of-local-auditor-reporting-on-local-government-in-england-2020/?slide=1

6 July 2021

13

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
National Audit Office
10. NAO Report – public service pensions, March 2021
As an employer, the government provides public service employees with access to occupational pension schemes. As at 31 March 2020, there were more than 8 million
members of four of the largest public service pension schemes (the armed forces, civil service, NHS and teachers’ pension schemes), of which 2.8 million were retired and
receiving pension benefits and 5.2 million were either current or former employees. Around 25% of pensioners and 16% of the working-age population are members of a
public service pension scheme.

72

In general, public service pensions have become more expensive over time as the number of people receiving them has increased, owing to more members entering
retirement and living longer. This trend applies across public and private pensions and is consistent with international experience. In 2010 the government established the
Independent Public Service Pensions Commission, chaired by Lord Hutton (the Hutton Review) to undertake a fundamental structural review of public service pensions.
Following the Hutton Review final report in March 2011, and a period of negotiations with trade unions representing public service employees, the government introduced
reforms intended to manage the future costs of providing pensions.
Public service pensions are a notable benefit to public servants. HM Treasury focuses on the affordability of these pensions and who pays for them. The total costs of
providing pensions have been increasing over time, reflecting increasing numbers of pensioners. The government’s pension reforms over recent years have contained the
rise in future taxpayer costs by making pensions less generous and by increasing contributions from employees. However, taxpayer funding has increased and it will take
decades for the full effects of the 2011/2015 reforms to be seen in the government’s affordability measure. The balance of taxpayer funding has shifted from central
payments by HM Treasury to employer contributions by departments and organisations to ensure that employers bear the consequences of their employment decisions.
However, HM Treasury needs to monitor more than just affordability. Government’s approach to protecting those nearest retirement has been ruled unlawful and will cost
time and money to resolve. The government’s reforms also take no account of pensions as a recruitment and retention tool, with pensions continuing to be relatively
inflexible; the only real choice for most employees is to stay in the scheme or opt out altogether.
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/public-service-pensions/

6 July 2021

14

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
National Audit Office

11. NAO Updated Guidance for Auditors, April 2021
In April 2021, the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) approved and published updated auditor guidance:

73

Auditor Guidance Note 03 (AGN 03) - Auditors’ Work on Value for Money Arrangements. This has been updated to enable auditors to give their opinion on the
financial statements if they have not yet completed all their VFM arrangements work (where there is no material impact on the opinion), including the approach to reporting
any further issues if necessary by exception when auditors issue their certificate. The AGN also introduced revised deadlines for the Auditor’s Annual Report, which includes
the new commentary on VFM arrangements, of up to 3 months after issuing the audit opinion.
Auditor Guidance Note 07 (AGN 07) – Auditor Reporting. This was updated to bring it into line with AGN 03 as above.
Supplementary Guidance Note 01 (SGN 01) - Going Concern – Auditors’ responsibilities for local public bodies. The SGN focus is primarily on Practice Note (PN)
10: Audit of financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom, (Revised 2020), setting an expectation that auditors will follow the approach it
sets out. This recognises that going concern in the public sector context includes the concept of the ‘continued provision of services’ and the legislative basis for public
services, which means that the circumstances that will give rise to a material uncertainty in going concern are relatively limited and rare, and would normally require
legislative changes. This view is also reflected in the CIPFA Code, which recognises that the financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.
The NAO guidance does, however, highlight the wider issue of financial sustainability and funding for public services. Management will still need to undertake a going
concern assessment, and disclose an appropriate narrative within its financial statements in relation to the impact of the pandemic and pressures on funding, and disclose
any potential material uncertainties should they exist.
All of the NAO auditor guidance is publicly available at this link: https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/guidance-and-information-for-auditors/

6 July 2021

15

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
National Audit Office
12. NAO Report – Initial learning from the government’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic, May 2021
The NAO has recently published its Initial learning from the government’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic report, which is part of a programme of work the NAO is
undertaking to support Parliament in its scrutiny of government’s response to COVID-19. The report finds that the COVID-19 pandemic has stress-tested the government’s
ability to deal with unforeseen events and potential shocks. Government has often acted at unprecedented speed to respond to a virus which has caused dramatic
disruption to people’s lives, public service provision and society as a whole. Government had to continue to deliver essential public services, while reprioritising resources to
deliver its response to the COVID-19 pandemic and supporting staff to work from home. In its response, government has had to streamline decision-making, work across
departments and public bodies and use a range of delivery structures.
Departments will need to reflect on the lessons learned to ensure that they capitalise on the benefits and opportunities these new ways of working have brought.
This report draws out learning from the reports that we have published to date, as well as other work we have published that covered the COVID-19 pandemic. It sets out
this learning across six themes:

74

• risk management;
• transparency and public trust;
• data and evidence;
• coordination and delivery models;
• supporting and protecting people; and
• financial and workforce pressures.
The NAO will continue to draw out learning from the government’s response to the pandemic from our future work.
The full report is available from the NAO website. https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/Initial-learning-from-the-governments-response-to-the-COVID-19pandemic.pdf

6 July 2021

16

Contact

Follow us:

Mazars

LinkedIn:
www.linkedin.com/company/Mazars

Director: Mark Dalton

75

Email: mark.dalton@mazars.co.uk

Senior Manager: Mark Outterside
Email: mark.utterside@mazars.co.uk

Twitter:
www.twitter.com/MazarsGroup
Facebook:
www.facebook.com/MazarsGroup
Instagram:
www.instagram.com/MazarsGroup

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax
and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the
expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the
Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.
*where permitted under applicable country laws.

www.mazars.com

WeChat:
ID: Mazars

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2

77

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
.30

Report to:

Governance and Audit Committee

Date:

22 July 2021

Subject:

Compliance and Monitoring

Director(s):

Angela Taylor, Director, Corporate and Commercial Services

Author(s):

Jon Sheard

1.

Purpose of this report

1.1

To consider any changes to the arrangements for internal control in the West
Yorkshire Combined Authority since the last meeting of the Committee.

2.

Information

2.1

This paper is provided to each meeting of the Governance and Audit
Committee and provides information and assurance on governance issues.
Any changes to, or failures of, internal control will be reported along with
significant risk issues.
Internal controls

2.2

There have been no significant changes to internal controls in the period and
monthly reconciliations are up to date.

2.3

Measures put in place to enable business to continue during the pandemic
remain robust and changes made were fully captured within guidance notes
and procedures. Decision making meetings of members have had to revert to
being in person since the legislation enabling virtual meetings ceased on 7
May 2021.

2.4

The report earlier on this agenda has flagged the significant amount of work
that has taken place as a result of the new powers and functions that have
come to the Combined Authority and the Mayor as a result of the devolution
legislation. Internal controls have been considered in the light of these new
arrangements with some changes made and these will continue to be kept
under review.

2.5

The Regulatory and Compliance Board at officer level continues to meet and
will provide information as required to this Committee and the Combined
Authority. Its meetings have considered assurances provided by the work

79

undertaken by internal audit, health and safety, information governance, risks
and controls and compliance including financial, procurement, HR and other
policies, statutory returns and transparency arrangements. Actions are being
identified to ensure compliance is adequately documented and evidenced.
Enhanced dashboard reporting from the Health and Safety Committee is in
progress.
Treasury Management
2.6

The regular governance meetings continue to be held with Leeds City Council
to consider and review the transactions relating to investments and treasury
management. The last meeting was on 15 April 2021 and no areas of
concern were raised. The high level of cash balances was considered and the
challenges this presents with regard to placing funds with approved
counterparties. The next meeting is on 15 July and a verbal update will be
made to the Committee if anything of significance arises.

2.7

Following the transfer of the Police and Crime functions to the Combined
Authority from 10 May 2021, similar arrangements with regards to policing
funds have been adopted. These treasury management arrangements are
administered by Wakefield Council and in line with the treasury management
policies agreed by the former Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner.

2.8

During the next twelve months a fuller review is planned to ascertain whether
all the treasury management arrangements would benefit from being
administered by a single partner authority.
Key indicators

2.9

The Committee has requested regular information via key indicators,
specifically with regard to accidents reportable to the Health and Safety
Executive and with regard to key controls.

2.10

No further RIDDOR incidents have been reported since the previous meeting,
leaving the total for the year at two.

2.11

Key indicators are monitored in relation to the suite of financial controls
undertaken monthly in both the finance and the concessions and integrated
ticketing team. These are both up to date as at the time of writing this report.
Financial monitoring
Revenue Budget 2020/21 – Final Outturn

2.12 The 2020/21 year had started with a balanced budget, though members will
recall that attention soon switched to revising the forecasts to take account of
the national pandemic. These impacts were reported throughout the year to
both this committee and to the Combined Authority on a regular basis and the
position became more manageable. This was due to successful
representation to government for support grants, revised estimates and

80

actions taken to reduce expenditure. In the final quarter of 2020/21, it became
apparent from forecasting work that a balanced outturn was not only
achievable but the prospect of an actual surplus was becoming a reality.
2.13

The final outturn for the year was a £4.8 million surplus, of which £1.4 million
relates to a timing difference on election costs. The other £3 million has arisen
primarily due to changes in concessionary fare reimbursement during the
pandemic. The situation with regard to ongoing concessionary
reimbursement and other bus operator payments in the post-recovery period
remains highly volatile and with significant levels of risk and uncertainty. Staff
vacancies above forecasted levels, additional enterprise zone business rates
receipts and investment income above previous forecasts and managed
savings across a range of supplies and service budgets have also contributed.

2.14

The final election costs are yet to be confirmed by partner authorities and
there is a significant risk that the budgeted level of costs will be exceeded due
to the additional requirements put in place to ensure COVID secure elections.
It is expected therefore that up to £2 million may be required to meet the final
costs which will be notified to the Combined Authority during 2021/22.
Members will be aware of the pressures on the Combined Authority budget,
and the work in updating the medium term financial strategy and preparing the
2022/23 budget will take this transfer to reserves into consideration, and
determine how this could contribute to meeting existing commitments and
demands.
Revenue Budget and Capital budget 2021/22

2.15

The approved revenue budget for 2021/22 was a balanced position at the
start of the year, whilst recognising the risks still being managed as due to the
national pandemic.

2.16

The financial position is to be monitored through the newly formed Finance,
Resources and Corporate committee which will receive regular reports on
expenditure forecasts and financial performance information.
Risk management

2.17 In line with the provisions of the corporate risk management strategy, regular
review of the key strategic risks affecting the organisation continues to be
undertaken and the corporate risk register updated accordingly.
2.18 A summary of the headline strategic risks is included at Appendix 1 to this
report. Since the last reporting period the specific risks relating to continuity of
day to day Combined Authority services during the transfer to the Mayoral
model have been closed. Where any residual risks remain (e.g. embedding
the new Mayoral arrangements) these are being managed through directorate
or service level risk registers.
2.19 Work is also underway to align risk management and reporting processes for
the Policing and Crime Team, following their transfer to the Combined

81

Authority in May. At present West Yorkshire Police provide support in terms of
reporting policing and crime risks through established policing committee
structures, with reporting taking place to the Joint Independent Audit and
Ethics Committee (JIAEC). As such consideration is currently being given to
how best to align these processes with the Combined Authority’s wider
reporting framework. Best practice from each organisation will also be
considered as part of this work to help inform further improvement of
corporate risk management processes.
2.20 In the first instance it is envisaged that the directorate risk register for the
Strategy, Communications and Policing directorate would highlight any key
risks relating to policing matters and these would be escalated to the
Corporate Risk Register as necessary, and/or reported to the JIAEC.
3

Tackling the Climate Emergency Implications

3.1

There are no climate emergency implications directly arising from this report.

4.

Inclusive Growth Implications

4.1

There are no inclusive growth implications directly arising from this report

5.

Financial Implications

5.1

As set out in the report.

6.

Legal Implications

6.1

There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.

7.

Staffing Implications

7.1

There are no staffing implications directly arising from this report.

8.

External Consultees

8.1

No external consultations have been undertaken.

9.

Recommendations

9.1

That the Committee consider the information contained in this report.

10.

Background Documents
None.

11.

Appendices
Appendix 1 – Corporate risk register.

82

Corporate risk summary

CRRSD1

There is a risk that we fail to fully
deliver projects and programmes (i.e.
Growth Deal) within timescales or
budget, or with the anticipated level of
benefits, due to over-optimistic profiles,
capacity within both the Combined
Authority and District partners and
recruitment and retention challenges.

Probability

Impact

Possible
3

Critical
5

 Significant monitoring and controls in place through PMO
 Continuing support through 'District Pool' project resource
 Ongoing Review of WY+TF portfolio with Chief Highways Officers

Critical
5

83

CRRSD5

There is a risk that there will be a
major impact on achievement of
organisational objectives and/or a need
to reconsider objectives and divert
resources, due to a major
unanticipated change in national policy
(Brexit; major change in govt policy).

Possible
3

Critical
5

 Continued dialogue with Government
 Policy and Strategy directorate continuing to monitor emerging
national trends
 Continued work with local LEPs and Combined Authorities

CRRSD6

Critical
5

 Research and Intelligence team modelling potential impacts and long
term scenarios
 Working closely with partners and representative groups to identify
possible long term impacts and develop joint responses
 Updated business plans to identify key areas for re-prioritisation

There is a risk that key corporate
objectives cannot be met due to the
long term impacts of the COVID-19
pandemic on the regional economy and
on travel habits.

Possible
3

Agenda Item 10

Possible
3

Appendix 1

There is a risk that there are
challenges and disruption to the way in
which the Combined Authority provides
services and the resources available to
deliver those, due to uncertainty
surrounding the UK's future relationship
with the EU.

 Organisation wide Brexit action plan in place
 Ongoing liaison with Bus Operators for reassurance on preparation
for fuel or labour shortages
 Communications and media campaign focusing on effective
signposting and support
 Monitoring of legislative developments
 Additional grant funding available to support local businesses
 Secured additional resources, and refocussed existing ones, to
support more businesses to prepare for Brexit and to gain a better
understanding of impacts/opportunities on the economy.
 Continuing to monitor projects which may be vulnerable to shortages
in skilled labour or supply chain disruption

CRRSD2

Very
high

Mitigation summary

Probability
CRR
– FR3

CRRSD8

CRRFR4

There is a risk that the immediate,
medium and long term financial health
of the Combined Authority will be
adversely affected due to the financial
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic
There is a risk that there will be a
significant increase in unemployment
across the region, due to the ongoing
economic disruption caused by the
COVID-19 crisis and the end of the
national Job Retention Scheme
(furlough)

84

There is a risk that the Combined
Authority is placed under pressure to
fund the reinstatement of commercial
bus services threatened with
withdrawal, due to premature
withdrawal of emergency government
funding support

Possible
3

Likely
4

Possible
3

Impact

Mitigation summary

Critical
5

 Financial scenario planning undertaken and being continually
updated
 Continued liaison with Government to understand funding
opportunities
 Budget Working Group meeting to oversee response

Serious
4

 Joint intelligence gathering on the employment impacts– including the
demographic, sectoral and geographical impact
 Current programmes – particularly the Employment Hub and [re]boot
– have been flexed to support redundant and furloughed workers
 Lobbying government for Combined Authorities to be resourced to
support people into work and for a national job creation/wage subsidy
scheme.
 Recovery Plan developed including a focus on creating employment
and self-employment opportunities.

Critical
5

 Continued liaison with Government on funding
 Close liaison with bus companies to identify cost neutral/effective
solutions
 Review and adapt current mechanism to appraise social and
commercial value of threatened services

Probability
CRRDR1

CRRFR2

High
CRRSS1

There is a risk that a major
contractor/supplier/recipient of Combined
Authority funding encounters significant
financial difficulties, or enters administration
or liquidation, and are therefore unable to
deliver agreed projects, due to current
uncertainties within the construction
industry.
There is a risk that there is insufficient
floorspace to generate projected business
rates income, due to challenges in bringing
forward Enterprise Zone sites within Growth
Deal funding and occupier incentive
timescales.

85

There is a risk that a major accident or
injury occurs at a Combined Authority
facility, due to the high volume of people
and inherent operational risks present in a
bus station, transport interchange or
Combined Authority facility.

CRR– There is a risk that a cyber security
SS2
malware infection could infiltrate the
organisation, due to the growth of cyber
crime and organisation targeting which is
increasing due to covid19

Possible
3

Possible
3

Unlikely
2

Possible
3

Impact

Serious
4

Serious
4

Critical
5

Serious
4

Mitigation summary





Contractual KPIs & penalty clauses
Agreed escalation routes in contracts
Ability to de-scope via change requests with partner buy-in
Embed security measures into as many contracts as possible e.g.
bond, legal charge, priority in lending hierarchy
 Regular financial checks in place through Procurement &
contract/loan monitoring
 External consultants procured to advise on future investment
strategy/due diligence processes for more commercial deals
 Progress policy gap workstreams in parallel with Delivery
 Progress detailed due diligence & potential funding/overage
agreement negotiations
 Identify other potential land/property income streams for GD monies





Health and safety policies, procedures and processes in place
Staff training
Ongoing review of Health and Safety risks
Working with district emergency planning units to share knowledge
and develop joint plans
 Continued working with police on preventative measures
 Business Continuity and Disaster Management workshops taking
place at corporate level





Systems protected through firewalls
Additional cyber security software in place
Increased training for ICT staff
Regular testing

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

Report to:

Governance and Audit Committee

Date:

22 July 2021

Subject:

Annual Accountability Reporting

Director:

Angela Taylor, Director of Corporate and Commercial Services

Author:

Caroline Allen, Head of Legal and Governance Services

1.

Purpose of this report

1.1

To provide annual reports in respect of complaints and concerns raised about
the Leeds City Region Local Enterprise Partnership (the LEP) and/or
members of the LEP Board this year.

1.2

To provide a summary of applications for grants considered during the last
financial year under arrangements to address conflicts of interest.

2.

Information
Annual reports

2.1

Concerns from a member of the public or third party about the LEP may be
reported through:




the procedure for considering complaints alleging a failure to comply with
the LEP Boards Members’ Code of Conduct,
the LEP’s confidential complaints procedure,
the LEP’s whistleblowing policy.

Complaints about the LEP may also be channelled through the Combined
Authority’s complaints policy.
2.2

The procedure for considering complaints alleging a failure to comply with the
LEP Board Members’ Code of Conduct requires the Monitoring Officer to
report annually to the LEP and to the Governance and Audit Committee about
any outcome of any such complaint.

87

2.3

The Monitoring Officer can now report that no complaint has been received in
the financial year ending March 31 2021 under this procedure. Nor has
complaint been received under this confidential complaints procedure, nor
under the Combined Authority’s complaints procedure.

2.4

The LEP’s Whistleblowing Policy provides for the Combined Authority’s Head
of Internal Audit to Provide an annual report to the LEP and to the Combined
Authority’s Governance and Audit Committee. The Head of Internal Audit has
confirmed that n concerns were received under this policy during the financial
year 2020 – 21.
Grant applications

2.5

The LEP and Combined Authority’s jointly adopted Conflicts of Interests Policy
provides an overview of conduct-related provisions applying to Members and
officers, with a particular focus on conflicts of interest arising in respect of
applications for loans or grants to business, which is addressed by way of the
Conflicts of Interest Protocol. The Protocol seeks to ensure that such
applications are dealt with fairly and impartially, including where decisions are
made by officers under delegated authority. (The specific declaration
requirements in the Codes of Conduct adopted by the Combined Authority and
the LEP reflect the statutory requirements relating to declarations at formal
meetings, and do not extend to declarations outside of formal meeting of the
LEP Board or committees.)

2.6

For transparency and accountability, Appendix 1 to this report is a summary of
the grant applications considered by officers under the delegated authority in
the financial year 2020 – 21, and their outcome. Declarations made by
members at the LEP Board or panel meetings are publicly available on the
LEP or Combined Authority’s website as they are recorded in the minutes for
each meeting.

3.

Tackling the Climate Emergency Implications

3.1

None arising directly from this report.

4.

Inclusive Growth Implications

4.1

None arising directly from this report.

5.

Financial Implications

5.1

None arising directly from this report.

6.

Legal Implications

6.1

None arising directly from this report.

7.

Staffing Implications

88

7.1

None arising directly from this report.

8.

External Consultees

8.1

No external consultations have been undertaken.

9.

Recommendations

9.1

That the Governance and Audit Committee notes that no complaints or
concerns have been raised this year about the LEP (or about any member of
the LEP Board) under the LEP’s complaints procedures, the Combined
Authority’s complaints policy and the LEP’s whistleblowing policy.

9.2

That the Governance and Audit Committee notes that the summary set our in
the Appendix 1 to this report, relating to grant applications considered under
conflict of interest arrangements in place during 2020 – 21.

10.

Background Documents
None.

11.

Appendices
Appendix 1 – summary of grant applications considered under conflict of
interest arrangements during 2020 – 21.

89

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1
APPENDIX 1
Summary of grant applications dealt with under conflict of interest
arrangements, 2020/21
Funding
Stream

Name of
Name of
applicant
member
(business)

REBiz

Atkinson
Dyeing
Limited
Paxman
Coolers
Limited

REBiz

Andrew
Wright

Interest Decision- Date of
Outcome
declared maker
Decision
by
member
Andrew
Ben Still
04/09/2020 Approved
Wright

Richard
and
Claire
Paxman

Richard
and
Claire
Paxman

91

Ben Still

05/05/2021 Approved

This page is intentionally left blank

